HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 18, 2005
1:46 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:46:43 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Kat heri ne Farnham D vision of Public Assistance, Departnent
of Health and Social Services; Ellie Fitzgerald, Chief,
Policy and Program Devel opnent, D vision of Publ i c
Assi stance, Departnent of Health and Social Services; Angela
Sal erno, Executive Director, National Association of Social
Wor kers Al aska Chapter; Cheryl Sutton, Staff, Senator Ben
Stevens; Frank Homan, Conm ssioner, Commercial Fisheries
Entry Conmm ssion; Representative Paul Seaton; Jerry MCune,
United Fishernen of Al aska; Phelan Straube, Staff, Senator
Ben Stevens; Senator Ben Stevens; Eddy Jeans, Director,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Don Shircel, Director of Famly Services, Tanana Chiefs
Conference; Ed Martin, Sr., Kenai; Petria Fal kenberg, Kenai,
Red Smith, Cooper Landing; Fred Sturnam Sol dotna; Rocky
Frank, Anchor Point; Janes Price, N kiski; lan Felton, Kenai
SUMVARY

CSSB 51(FI N)

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



"An Act relating to contracts for the provision of
state public assistance to certain recipients in
t he state; provi di ng for r egi onal public
assistance plans and prograns in the state;
relating to grants for Alaska Native famly
assistance prograns; relating to assignnment of
child support by Alaska Native famly assistance
recipients; relating to paternity determ nations
and genetic testing involving recipients of
assi stance under Alaska Native famly assistance
prograns; and providing for an effective date."

HCSSB 51 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with
a "do pass” recommendation and wth four
Departnent of Health and Social Services fiscal
not es.

CSSB 93(FI'N)
"An Act relating to commercial fishing permt and
vessel i cense fees; and providing for an
effective date."

CSSB 93 (FIN) was heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

CSSB 155( FI' N)

"An Act nmaking appropriations from the earnings
reserve account for construction of an integrated
science conplex at the University of Alaska in
Anchor age, for repl acenent of the virol ogy
| aboratory in Fairbanks, for expansion of the
Anchorage Museum of History and Art, for the nmjor
mai nt enance grant fund, and for other capital
projects related to education; and providing for
an effective date."

HCSSB 155 (FIN) was heard and HELD in Conmittee
for further consideration.

1: 47: 30 PM

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 51(FIN)

"An Act relating to contracts for the provision of
state public assistance to certain recipients in the
state; providing for regional public assistance plans
and prograns in the state; relating to grants for
Al aska Native famly assistance prograns; relating to
assignnment of child support by Alaska Native famly
assi st ance reci pi ents; relating to paternity
determ nati ons and genetic testing involving recipients
of assistance under Al aska Native famly assistance
prograns; and providing for an effective date."

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



KATHERI NE FARNHAM DI VI SI ON OF PUBLI C ASSI STANCE, DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, related the background of the
Tenporary Assistance for Native Famlies (TANF) program
She described the results of the Wlfare to Wrk bill

Twel ve  regional native non-profit or gani zati ons and
Met| akatla were designated to run tenporary assistance
pr ogr ans. State funds were nmde available along with the
federal funds. She explained the Alaska Native Famly

Assi stance Program and the sunset date. SB 51 would allow
this program to becone permanent and would expand it from
the four initial organizations, to the thirteen designated
by the federal governnent. The end results have been great
successes with a 66 percent casel oad reduction.

1: 52: 39 PM

Ms. Farnham addressed the fiscal notes. She described the
efforts of Cook Inlet Tribal Council to take on 600 new
famlies. This would change the funding scenario starting
July 1. There would be a reduction of $2 mllion in general
fund match, as well as a reduction of $2.8 million in the
federal receipt authority. She referred to a chart “FY06
Budget Inpact for State-CITC Transfer”, which showed the
effects of the fiscal notes (copy on file.) The federal
share goes directly to Cook Inlet and reduces the state’'s
federal tenporary assistance receipts. The state has to
mat ch 75 percent of the federal block grant w th maintenance
of effort general funds. As the federal floor |owers, so
does the state match. She highlighted the advantages of the
Cook Inlet program Maniilaq and Bristol Bay Native
Association are also planning to start wup their own
progranms. She urged passage of SB 51.

1:57:19 PM

Representative Kelly noted that tribal governnents are not
recogni zed in Al aska. He asked why they are included in
this funding. M. Farnham expl ai ned that the | anguage used,
“tribal TANF prograni, is from the federal level, and in
Al aska they are regional Native non-profit prograns. Each
receiving gr ant ee wai ves sovereignty i mmunity.

Representative Kelly asked if it has no inpact on the
sovereignty issue. M. Farnhamreplied yes. Representative
Kelly suggesting calling them 501(c)(3)’s. Ms. Farnham
replied that they are. Representative Kelly maintained that
it is a msuse of federal |anguage. Ms. Farnham poi nted out
that in the actual statutory |anguage “regional Native non-
profits” is used.

2: 00: 33 PM

Representative Croft stressed that Al aska does recognize
tribes, just not as governnmental entities, for the purposes
of receiving federal nonies. Representative Kelly expressed

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



concern about allow ng Indian Reservations to be established
in Al aska.

2:02:20 PM
Ms. Farnham noted that “tribal” is used appropriately in the
bill.

Representative Kelly clarified that he is not comrenting
negatively on the nerits of the program

2:03: 29 PM

Representative Holm asked why Mtlakatla 1is nentioned
separately. Ms. Farnham explained that it was a late
addition to the program She noted that not all regional

non-profits have the capacity to participate in a program

Representative Holm asked if Sealaska Corporation is a
partici pant. She replied that Tlingit & Haida serves this
area and the state serves Metl akatl a. Representati ve Hol m
noted that Metlakatla is a federal reservation.

2: 05: 33 PM

In response to a question from Co-Chair Chenault, M.
Farnhamreported that “fair and equitable” is a process that
exam nes caseloads for what the state currently spends on
those famlies for work services, child support, etc. Co-
Chair Chenault asked if that is for the three |[argest
gr ant ees. Ms. Farnham replied it is for the three current
grantees and will be used for Cook Inlet, also. Co- Chair
Chenault asked if race is a factor. Ms. Farnham replied
that the aimis to assure that native nonprofits can serve
the famlies in a way that is at least as well financed as
when it was run by the state.

2:08: 14 PM

MOLLY MERRI TT DUREN, EMPLOYMENT & TRAI N NG SERVI CES, COOK
INLET TRIBAL COUNCIL (CITC), pointed out that her program
has been provi di ng case nanagenent services for eight years.
She referred to the handout “Cook Inlet Tribal Council”
(copy on file.) She described the reductions since the 1994
caseload. She related the mssion of the tribal council and
the services they provide. She indicated that CITC is ready
to assune this responsibility.

2:11:44 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker endorsed the program and thanked Ms.
Merritt Duren for her hard work.

2:12: 34 PM

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



DON SH RCEL, DIRECTOR OF FAMLY SERVICES, TANANA CH EFS
CONFERENCE, spoke with pride about the work done by the
tribes of the interior. He testified in support of SB 51
because it allows for continuation and expansion of these
progr ans.

2:15:48 PM

Co- Chair Chenault asked for an explanation of fiscal note #1
by the Departnent of Health and Social Services. He
wondered if sonme of the noney is federal noney that goes
back to the grant recipient. He suggested there m ght be
general fund savings. He wondered if any state enployees
woul d be | ost.

2:17:40 PM

Ms. Farnham responded that sone federal noney is |eaving the
departnent’s budget and going directly to Cook Inlet. She
explained the transfer and real savings. The first
conponent is the Native Famly Assistant Program which
increases by $4 mllion. She pointed out that each fisca
note has a sunmary.

Ms. Farnham expl ained that the second fiscal note, the work
services conponent related to case nmanagenent, shows a
reduction of $1.3 mllion because of a nove from grants to
contracts.

Ms. Farnham explained that the third fiscal note relates to

chil dcare benefits. It will no longer be spent directly,
but will be part of the Cook Inlet program This note does
the best job of integrating the whole story. It shows the
reduction of federal receipts because of high performance
success. The match is at 75 percent. It is a $5.7 mllion
general fund reduction.

2:24:16 PM

Representative Croft questioned that nunber. Ms. Farnham

replied that the net nunbers show that the general fund
reduction is actually $2 mllion. Cook Inlet is the |argest
one that will be operating this way. Representative Croft
asked how the difference between the $5.7 million and the $2
mllion is reconciled. M. Farnhamreplied that the |argest
difference is that $3.6 million is being transferred to the
native famly assistance conponent. Representative Croft
summarized that it is not a savings of $5.7 mllion. Ms.
Farnhamreplied that the $2 mllion is the net savings.

Representative Foster asked how non-native famlies are
served in rural areas. M. Farnhamreplied that there is a
contract to serve both natives and non-natives. She terned
it valuable to work with AVCP as a partner. This may work

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



for Bristol Bay as well. Representative Foster asked if
there is an admnistrative fee. Ms. Farnham rel ated that
there is an acceptable small fee. It funds only two things:
cash benefits to the famly and adm ni strati ve expenses.

2:28:16 PM

Representative Hol m noted that CITC nunbers have gone from
1,000 to 600. He inquired if there is true savings in
enpl oynent and if those in state enploynent are considered
unbi ased and those in corporations, biased. He wondered if
state and federal funds should be put into facility
provi ders that would have a bias. M. Farnham addressed the
inpact to state workers. She reported that there would be
no reduction in state enployees and personnel. Casel oads
are changing post-welfare reform dramatically, and a study
needs to be done to track the increases and decreases. Sone
staff rearrangenents are being considered. The depart nent
wll do an analysis to better understand the trends.

Ms. Farnham addressed the fairness issue. She expl ai ned
that native corporations use mnultiple funding strands and
focus them on the famly. The departnent is trying to
integrate services nore |like Cook Inlet. The native

organi zations can provide a nore integrated program The
departnment is |ooking at marketing famly centered services.

2:35: 23 PM

Representati ve Hol m expressed appreciation for t he
presentati on. He addressed a concern about an increase in
staff when services are reduced. M. Farnham expl ai ned the
success of the program depends on taking the savings and
putting it back into services. Some of the famlies on
public assistance still have serious needs, and at the end
of the 5-year tinme limt would need nore resources. Another
reason is that the agency receiving the funds can use them
in a variety of ways, some of which need nore enpl oyers.

2:39: 08 PM

Representative Kelly asked whether a person enployed in a
job out of the region counts, in areas with a 50 percent
unenpl oynent rate. M. Farnham responded that enploynent is
enpl oynent; the end gane is enploynent and sel f-sufficiency.
Representative Kelly asked for statistics on out-of-region
jobs. M. Farnham said they are not tracked once they exit
t he program and are enpl oyed.

2:41: 37 PM

ELLI E FI TZGARRALD, PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT, DI VISION OF PUBLIC
ASSI STANCE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL  SERVI CES,
expl ai ned the successes of the Leaver’'s Study. She related

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



that there is no data kept after six nonths. Representative
Kel |y suggested those would be interesting nunbers to track.

2:43: 05 PM

Representative Kelly asked about the permanence of the
pr ogram He wondered if the direction is wong due to the

| oss of federal funds. Ms. Farnham clarified that this
federal program is not on the “down slope” and has w de
nati onal support. She spoke about safeguards and expl ai ned
that Senate Finance did add |anguage to the bill that would
protect Al aska from backfilling future holes. She referred
to page 9, line 19, which addresses this concern. Each

grant is negotiated annually, and the program is not
destined to be cut.

Representative Foster thanked the departnent for the
presentati on. He MOVED to report CSSB 51 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Representative Kelly OBJECTED. He expl ained that he wants
the word *“tribal” out of the statutes. Ms. Farnham
indicated that tribal is only referenced in conjunction with
the federal tribal assistance program

2:47: 26 PM

Representative Croft noted that the 12 references to triba
in the bill are all in the context of a federally approved
tribal famly assistance program

Representative Kelly referred to page 3, line 17, a
reference to operating a tribal assistance program He
suggested “federal” should be added. Ms. Farnham expl ai ned
the neaning of the line, noting that the intent is clear.

Representative Foster noted that it is easy to confuse
sovereign and tribal. He related that the 13 native
corporations are tribal organizations.

Representative Kelly WTHDREW hi s objection. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

2:50: 16 PM

At ease.

2:52: 03 PM

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 93(FIN)

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



"An Act relating to commercial fishing permt and
vessel license fees; and providing for an effective
date."

CHERYL SUTTON, STAFF, SENATOR BEN STEVENS, explained that
the bill addresses the commerci al fisheries entry
comm ssion, which 1is fee-based funded. She related
contributing factors which led up to the bill. SB 93 woul d
bring the state into conpliance with recent rulings in
Carlson v. State of Al aska, raise the $300 artificial cap on
the base fee for annual permt renewal to $3,000, and
charges a non-resident fee differential of $115 only once.
She expl ai ned vessel license fees as they are related to the
vari ous categori es.

2:55:42 PM

FRANK  HOVAN, COW SSI ONER, COWERCI AL FI SHERI ES ENTRY
COM SSI ON, concurred with Ms. Sutton’s testinony regarding
the need for the bill. He noted that the alternatives are
not very good; to seek general funds or to reduce staff.

2:56:59 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked Comm ssioner Homan if he has
t hought about not filling a conm ssioner posi tion.
Comm ssi oner Homan responded that the conm ssioner’s salary
at the limted entry conm ssion are set in statute.

2:58: 24 PM

JERRY MCCUNE, UNI TED FI SHERMEN OF ALASKA, stated support for
the Al aska Comrercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion (CFEC) and
for the conmmttee substitute for SB 93.

3:00:19 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent 1:

Page 2, lines 21 - 23:
Delete all material and insert:

"(4) over 75 feet - 100 feet ............ 225
(5) over 100 feet - 125 feet ............ 300
(6) over 125 feet - 150 feet ............ 375
(7) over 150 feet - 175 feet ............ 450
(8) over 175 feet - 200 feet ............ 525
(9) over 200 feet - 225 feet ............ 600
(10) over 225 feet - 250 feet ........... 675
(11) over 250 feet - 275 feet ........... 750
(12) over 275 feet - 300 feet ........... 825
(13) over 300 feet .................... 900."

Vice-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for the purpose of discussion.

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, spoke in support of Anmendnent 1,
which would break the fees into 25-foot categories for
smal | er vessel levels. It would generate the sane anount of
noney, but be nore appropriate.

3:02:31 PM

In response to a question by Vice-Chair Stoltze,
Representative Seaton explained that in the anmendnent CFEC
addressed his concern that appropriate charges acconpany the
appropriate size of vessel.

3:04:13 PM

Ms. Sutton spoke in opposition to Arendnent 1. She observed
that the bill is a conprom se between different areas of the
state.

Representative Weyhrauch asked if there were not sone basis
for size delineations.

Ms. Sutton noted that she did not see the amendnent prior to
the neeting and the sponsor would not approve of it.

3: 05: 50 PM

Co-Chair Meyer felt that the anmendnent has sone nerit.

Representative Croft sunmmarized that the sane anount of
noney would be raised, but that the fee would be tilted
toward the | arger vessels. Representative Seaton noted that
the fee would increase according to the size of the vessel.
The top fee would be $900.

3:08:18 PM

Comm ssi oner Homan, provi ded i nformation about t he
intention of the anendnent. He noted that CSSB 93 (FIN)
provides a straight 20 percent increase as a conprom se
between larger and snaller vessels. The anendnent changes
t he anount by adding nore categories, which spreads out the
costs.

M. Homan expl ained that there are nore boats in the smaller
fee categories. He expressed concern that the anmendnent not
j eopardi ze the | egislation.

3:11: 04 PM

Co- Chair Meyer questioned if the smaller boats are generally
owned by Al askans and the |arger boats are owned by out - of -
state interests. M. Homan confirned that idea.

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



SB 93 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

3:13:18 PM

At ease.

3:17:55 PM

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 155(FIN)

"An Act maki ng appropriations fromthe earnings reserve
account for construction of an integrated science
conplex at the University of Al aska in Anchorage, for
replacenent of the virology |aboratory in Fairbanks,
for expansion of the Anchorage Miuseum of History and
Art, for the mmjor maintenance grant fund, and for
other capital projects related to education; and
providing for an effective date."”

SENATOR BEN STEVENS, sponsor, explained that SB 155 is a
one-tinme appropriation bill for major projects across the
state. The bill retires the entire deferred naintenance
list of the Departnent of Education and Chil dhood and Early
Devel opnent, $142 million for 70 projects across the state.

The bill funds new construction of schools and sone
rehabilitation projects. The third part of the bill funds
university projects across the state. The fourth part of
the bill appropriates noney for a nuseum in Anchorage. He
suggested that all projects are a lasting 1investnent,
education-rel at ed, and affect future generations of

Al askans. He encouraged support of the bill

3:24: 38 PM

Co-Chair Meyer spoke about the possibility of adding new
fundi ng anendnents. He asked how flexible the sponsor is.
Senator Stevens said the flexibility is contingent upon the
three criteria of the bill. He said he is opposed to a one-
time debt service relief such as the request fromhis schoo

district.

3:26:19 PM

Representative Hawker applauded the bill. He asked for
cooments on the fund source and the inpact on future
per manent fund divi dends. Senator Stevens referred to the
| ast page of a handout by the Departnent of Education and
Early Developnent on the Effect of “One-Tinme” Earnings
Reserve Account Wthdrawal in FYO6 on the D vidend Check
(copy on file.) He stated that the noney he has paid for
education as a property tax owner over 15 years has been ten
tinmes greater than the inpact on future dividends.

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



Representative Hawker summarized that the cost absorbed by
i ndi vi dual Al askans over 15 years is $300. Senator Stevens
shared that that would be his kindergarten son’s inpact. He
enphasi zed that it is well worth the effort.

3:29:51 PM

Representative Croft referred to the 1999 permanent fund
vot e and asked why the pernmanent fund woul d be used now t hat
oil is at $50 per barrel and there is a great reserve in the
governnment’s savi ng account. Senator Stevens related that
the difference is that this is a one-tinme source. He opined
that “earnings reserve for government” means the annua
operation expenses and a continuing fund source. This bill
IS an investnent in state assets, a transfer of an asset,
not expenditure. He inplied that the return of the
investnment is non-tangible, due to the savings in school
i nprovenents and the benefits to students.

3:.32:53 PM
Representative Kelly asked what <chance the bill has.
Senator Stevens replied “one step at a tine”. He said he

hoped there is enough evidence for the House Finance
Commttee to consider this bill

3:34: 34 PM

Representati ve Hawker requested nore discussion about the
capital projects nmgjor nmaintenance |ist.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if this bill is part of the capital
budget . Senator Stevens replied it is not, it is a stand-
al one appropriation.

3:36:18 PM

Senator Stevens referred to the Departnent of Education and
Early Developnment |list and reported that there are 71
projects throughout Al aska (copy on file.) He related that
it would be many years before so nmany naintenance needs
woul d surface again. Current appropriation bills only
address the top 20 projects.

3:38:34 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze stated appreciation for the efforts of
Senat or Stevens. He speculated that the bill would not w pe
out all maintenance needs and there would be new requests
next year. Senator Stevens noted that in order to be

eligible for this list, schools had to have a departnent-
approved mai nt enance program

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer asked if sone of the new school projects
could be conpleted with the 70/30 match. He wondered if
this bill would set a precedent. Senator Stevens replied
that it was not a major consideration when the bill was
witten. He related a story about his children, M& Ms and
i ssues of fairness. He noted that the sane concept applies
to this bill, which is an attenpt to neet many needs.

3:43: 44 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that this is a bold bill

Representative Foster commented that there is nothing in the
capital budget for his district. He agreed with the use of
the funding source. He repeated that his district receives
not hi ng.

3:45:26 PM

Senator Stevens said that the conpetition for resources is
fierce. This bill is an attenpt to elimnate one of the
areas of conpetition, the deferred maintenance |ist. He
addressed whether Al aska is benefiting in the best way, the
way the fund is currently being managed. He related the
history of the fund and the how checks are paid out. He

suggested that the fund is an underutilized asset, and it
should be transferred to facilities that generate a
different type of return instead of a nonetary return.

3:48: 39 PM

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out that school nmaintenance is a good
use for these funds. He questioned if Anerada Hess funds
shoul d be used for these projects. Senator Stevens replied
that the Senate has not mngled the two sources. Co- Chair
Meyer suggested that is another funding source. He inplied
that the Anerada Hess is al so “dead noney”.

3:50: 55 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch noted that the debate on this bill
is a tune up for future debates about the use of the
permanent fund. He stated that he analyzes this bill on an
i ndependent basis. He opined that the nost valuable return
on the investnent is the contribution that kids will nake in
the future.

3:52:49 PM

ED MARTIN, SR, KENAlI, opined that raiding the pernanent
fund is against the Alaskan’s will, which was expressed by a
statewide vote in 1999. He suggested that there is very
strong support against the bill. He testified against SB
155.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



3:55:43 PM

PETRI A FALKENBERG, KENAI, spoke in opposition to HB 155.
She referenced the vote in 1999 against tapping the
permnent fund. She shared details of a recent survey where
the majority voi ced opinion against the bill

3:58:41 PM

RED SM TH, COOPER LANDI NG voiced concern about using the
permanent fund for projects in this bill. He mai ntai ned
that the people own the fund. He testified in opposition to
HB 155.

4:01: 03 PM

FRED STURNAM SOLDOTNA, testified in opposition to HB 155.
4:03:17 PM

JAMES PRICE, N KISKI, spoke in opposition to HB 155 because
the people voted not to use the permanent fund for this
pur pose.

4: 06: 36 PM

| AN FELTON, KENAI, testified in opposition to HB 155.
4. 06: 59 PM

ROCKY FRANK, ANCHOR PO NT, speaking as a senior citizen,
spoke in opposition to HB 155. He suggested giving a one-
time permanent fund payout.

4:09: 08 PM

Co-Chair Meyer cl osed public testinony.

Co-Chair Meyer related that a new CS for SB 155,
i ncor porating new anendnents, would be drafted.

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:10 PM

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 18/ 05 1:46 P. M



